# MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE STATE BOARD OF AGRICULTURE MARCH 19, 1942

Present: Mr. Berkey (Chairman); Messrs. Akers, Brody, Jakway, McPherson; Mrs. Masselink; President Hannah; Treasurer Wilkins; Secretary McDonel; and Superintendent Elliott.

Absent: No one.

The meeting was called to order at 10:10 A.M.

The minutes of the previous meeting were approved.

On motion of Mr. McPherson, seconded by Mr. Jakway, it was voted to approve the appointment of Mr. William Berkey as Chairman of the Board for a period of two years, to succeed himself.

#### RESIGNATIONS

#### Resignations

- 1. Resignation of Miss Leona Erdt as general duty nurse at the Health Service, effective March 16, 1942. Miss Erdt has been ordered to duty with the United States Navy Nursing Corps.
- 2. Resignation of Mrs. V. Jeannette Collins as general duty nurse at the Health Service, effective March 15, 1942. Mrs. Collins left because of defense conditions.
- 3. Resignation of Dr. Louise Schnute as Assistant Physician at the Health Service, effective April 30, 1942. Dr. Schnute will enter private practice.
- 4. Resignation of David D. Diehl as Assistant in Physical Education for Men, effective February 28, 1942. Mr. Diehl will spend all of his time on his farm.
- 5. Resignation of Verl C. Mershon as Extension Short Course Instructor in Food Merchandising, effective March 14, 1942. The State Board of Control for Vocational Education and the State Retail Grocers' Association have agreed that these short courses should terminate for this year.
- 6. Resignation of Huntington O. Allen as Assistant in Research in Agricultural Chemistry, effective March 31, 1942. Mr. Allen has accepted a position with the Buick Motor Car Company at Flint.
- 7. Resignation of Benjamin H. Pringle as Assistant in Research in Agricultural Chemistry, effective March 31, 1942. Mr. Pringle has accepted a position with the Atlas Powder Company.
- 8. Report that Miss Jean Surratt is declining the position as Assistant in Research in Agricultural Chemistry. She is accepting another position at a higher salary.
- 9. Resignation of Scott Pauley as half-time graduate graduate assistant in Forestry, effective March 31, 1942. Mr. Pauley has accepted a full-time position at the University of North Carolina.
- 10. Resignation of Marrine A. Terpstra as half-time graduate assistant in Chemistry effective March 31, 1942. Mr. Terpstra has accepted a full-time position with the Monsanto Chemical Company of St. Louis, Missouri.
- 11. Resignation of William H. Martin as quarter-time graduate assistant in Chemistry, effective March 31, 1942. Mr. Martin will devote all his time to graduate study.

On motion of Mr. McPherson, seconded by Mr. Akers, it was voted to approve the Resignations.

#### LEAVES

Leaves

- 1. Leave of absence without pay for six months for E.A. Gee, Associate Professor of Economics, effective March 1, 1942. Mr. Gee has accepted a temporary position with the U. S.Army Ordnance as supervisor of auditing.
- 2. Leave of absence with full pay for four months for Arthur Bell, Extension Specialist in Agricultural Engineering, effective March 1, 1942. Mr. Bell has been an employee since July 1, 1928, and has given exceptional service. Mr. Bell is ill.
- 3. Leave of absence with half pay for seven months for Miss Winifred Gettemy, Associate Professor of Textiles, Clothing and Related Arts, effective February 1, 1942. This corrects the action taken at the meeting of the Board in February.
- 4. Continuation of leave of absence without pay for three months for Miss Dorothy Benson, Instructor in Textiles, Clothing and Related Arts, effective April 1, 1942. Miss Benson was granted leave without pay for the winter term.
- 5. Leave of absence without pay for three months for Dr. Irma Gross, Professor of Home Management and Child Development, effective April 1, 1942. Miss Gross will direct the field work of a consumer purchase study at the request of the Office of Price Administration in Washington.

#### LEAVES, continued

6. Leave of absence without pay for Miss Catherine Keating, general duty nurse at the Health Ser- Leaves vice, for the period from March 16-31, 1942. Miss Keating is recuperating from a severe attack of influenze.

- 7. Leave of absence for one year without pay for employees of the College who have been called for Military Service, as follows:
  - a. Roy Wortley, foreman in the Forest Nursery, effective February 24, 1942. Mr. Wortley enlisted in the Navy but was to be called in the draft during the month of February.
  - b. K. J. Moilanen, County Agricultural Agent in Ontonagon County, effective March 13, 1942. Mr. Moilanen is a Reserve Officer.
  - c. Ray D. Lamphear, Manager of North Hall, effective March 15, 1942. Mr. Lamphear is a Reserve Officer and was called to active duty.
  - d. Burdette Stampley, Instructor in Speech, effective February 25, 1942.
  - e. C. N. McCarty, Instructor in Chemistry, effective April 1, 1942. Mr. McCarty is a Re-
  - f. Andrew Chlebo, employee of Buildings and Grounds, effective January 24, 1942.
  - g. Continuation for one year of military leave for Ray A. McGlaughlin, Electrician in Buildings and Grounds, effective April 10, 1942.
  - h. Continuation for one year of military leave for Laurence R. Pulver, Buildings and Grounds employee, effective May 1, 1942.

On motion of Mr. Brody, seconded by Mrs. Masselink, it was voted to approve the Leaves.

#### APPOINTMENTS

- 1. Appointment of Charles W. Griffin as part-time assistant baseball coach at a salary of \$250 for Appointments the season, effective February 1, 1942.
- 2. Appointment of Dr. Leonard Folkers as Assistant Physician at the Health Service at a salary of \$3750 per year, effective May 1, 1942. Dr. Folkers was employed in the same capacity at a salary of \$3500 per year from September 1939 to June 30, 1941. He will replace Dr. Lotise Schnute (salary \$3300) who has resigned.
- 3. Appointment of Miss Elzada Winterle as general duty nurse at the Health Service at a salary of \$95 per month plus meals and uniforms laundered, effective March 24, 1942. Miss Winterle will replace Mrs. V. Jeannette Collins who has resigned.
- 4. Appointment of Miss Edna Baur as general duty nurse at the Health Service at a salary of \$95 per month plus meals and uniforms laundered, effective March 16, 1942. Miss Baur will replace Miss Leona Erdt who has resigned.
- 5. Appointment of Gertrude Mueller as Dietitian at North Hall at a salary of \$125 per month for the period from April 1 to June 21, 1942. This is a new position.
- 6. Appointment of George T. Cantrick as visiting professor in Education for the six-week summer session 1942 at a salary of \$400 for the period. Mr. Cantrick is the Superintendent of Schools at Monroe, Michigan.
- 7. Appointment of Ernest G. Hildner, Jr., as a member of the faculty of the History Department for the six-week summer session 1942 at a salary of \$500 for the period. Mr. Hildner is Dean of Illinois College, Jacksonville, Illinois.
- Appointment of Theodore J. Werle as a member of the faculty of the Sociology Department for the six-week summer session 1942 at a salary of \$200 for the period. Mr. Werle is the Executive Director of the Michigan TB Association.
- 9. Appointment of Mrs. Elina Beck as County Club Agent for Houghton and Keweenaw Counties at a salary of \$100 per month for the period from April 1 to October 15, 1942. This arrangement has been made for previous years.
- 10. Appointment of John Wood Foster as District 4-H Club Agent in Kalamazoo, St. Joseph and Branch Counties at a salary of \$2100 per year on a permanent 12-month basis, effective March 16, 1942. Mr. Foster will replace Ralph May (salary \$2100) who has been transferred.
- 11. Continuation of the appointment of Fred Roth as Assistant Agricultural Engineering Specialist at a salary of \$175 per month for the period from March 13 to June 30, 1942.
- 12. Appointment of William H. Taylor as Instructor and Supervisor of the NYA Short Course Programs at a salary of \$3000 per year, effective for the period from April 1 to June 30, 1942. This is a cooperative arrangement with the State Board of Control for Vocational Education, and the College will be reimbursed for 75 per cent of Mr. Taylor's salary from Vocational

Not approved.

# 1800

#### APPOINTMENTS (continued)

#### Appointments

- 13. Appointment of Oran M. Knudsen as Instructor in Chemistry at a salary of \$2200 per year on a permanent 9-month basis, effective April 1, 1942. Mr. Knudsen will replace Paul J. Erickson (salary \$1800) who has resigned.
- 14. Appointment of Gordon L. Goerner as Instructor in Chemistry at a salary of \$2100 per year on a permanent 9-month basis, effective April 1, 1942. Mr. Goerner will replace Earle J. Smith (salary \$1800) who has resigned.
- 15. Reappointment of Juliette Myren as Instructor in Textiles, Clothing and Related Arts at a salary of \$600 for the period from April 1 to June 18, 1942. Miss Myren is teaching Miss Gettemy's classes.
- 16. Reappointment of Mrs. Eleanor Cramer Brewer as Instructor in Textiles, Clothing and Related arts at a salary of \$500 for the spring term 1942. Mrs. Brewer will replace Dorothy Benson during her leave.
- 17. Appointment of Mrs. Marguerite B. Wright as Instructor in Home Management and Child Development at a salary of \$200 for spring term 1942. Mrs. Wright will replace Dr. Gross during her leave.
- 18. Appointment of John F. Schktterback as special lecturer in Hotel Administration for spring term 1942. Mr. Schlotterback is to be paid an honorarium of about \$100 plus expenses from Chicago for each lecture, the total amount not to exceed \$300.
- 19. Transfer of Dr. John W. Cunkelman from the Anatomy Department to the Department of Surgery and Medicine at no change in salary, effective April 1, 1942. Dr. Cunkelman will replace William F. Riley who is on military leave.
- 20. Appointment of Merlin D. Eggleston as Instructor in Anatomy at a salary of \$1800 per year, effective July 1, 1942. Mr. Eggleston will replace Dr. Cunkelman whose salary is \$2300.
- 21. Ray S. Abel and Loren R. Nus are half-time graduate assistants in Speech. Dean Emmons recommends that they be paid \$200 additional salary for the spring term 1942 for teaching extra classes. This is a partial replacement of Burdette Stampley who is on military leave.
- 22. Appointment of Donald F. Goss as half-time graduate assistant in Accounting for 1942-43. Mr. Goss has been half-time undergraduate assistant in Accounting since October 1, 1941.

On motion of Mr. McPherson, seconded by Mr. Berkey, it was voted to approve all appointments except No. 12, which has been disapproved.

# TRAVEL

#### Travel

- 1. Full expenses of \$43.47 for B. F. VanAlstyne to attend the Northern Indiana Regional Basketball Tournament held in Hammond, Indiana, on March 6 and 7.
- 2. Full expenses for Ray Hutson to attend a meeting at Purdue University on March 11. The meeting was called in connection with research work and the coming summer program for the control of the European corn borer.
- 3. First-class railway fare only for Mabelle S. Ehlers to accompany women students to the Midwest Hotel Show in Chicago on March 15. The Hotel Association will pay room expenses.
- 4. Full expenses for Dean L. C. Emmons to represent Michigan State College at the Hotel Luncheon to be held in connection with the Midwest Hotel Show in Chicago on March 19.
- 5. Full expenses for Dean L.C. Emmons to represent Michigan State College at the annual meeting of the North Central Association of Colleges and Secondary Schools in Chicago on March 25-28.
- 6. Full expenses for Glen Stewart to attend the meeting of the Chicago Alumni Association in Chicago on March 28.
- 7. Full expenses for Ray Nelson to go to southern California the last of March to complete arrangements for research work in connection with celery disease.
- 8. Full expenses for Mabel Petersen to attend the Regional Conference of the Women's Self-Government Association in Columbus, Ohio, on April 8-10.
- 9. Full expenses for C. O. Wilkins to attend the meeting of the Business Officers' Association for Colleges and Universities in Dallas, Texas, on April 12-14.

- 10. Full expenses for R. S. Linton to attend the annual National Registrar's Convention in Chicago on April 14-15.
- 11. Full expenses for Dean R. C. Huston to attend the meeting of the American Chemical Society in Memphis, Tennessee, on April 20-24.
- 12. Full expenses for Dean F. T. Mitchell to attend the meeting of the National Association of Deans of Men at the University of Illinois at Urbana, on April 23-25.

#### TRAVEL (continued)

13. Mileage on one car and maintenance expenses for a member of the Speech Department to take one Travel student to the National Oratorical Contest at Northwestern University during the latter part of April.

- 14. First-class railway fare only for V. H. Noll to attend the North Central Association meeting in Chicago on March 25-28.
- 15. First-class railway fare only for D. W. Hayne to attend a meeting of the American Society of Mammologists in New York City on March 31 and April 1, payable from Experiment Station funds of the Zoology Department.
- 16. First-class railway fare only for Dr. Thelma Porter to attend a meeting of the Federation of the American Societies for Experimental Biology to be held in Boston on March 31 to April 4, to be paid from Experiment Station funds.
- 17. First-class railway fare only for P. A. Herbert to attend the annual meeting of the North American Wildlife Conference in Toronto, Canada, on April 8-10.
- 18. First-class railway fare only for K. J. McCristal to attend the Annual Midwest Convention of the American Association for Health, Physical Education and Recreation in Milwaukee, Wisconsin, on April 8-11.
- 19. Not to exceed \$75 for two or three representatives of the College to attend the inter-college committee meetings of the Cooperative Study in General Education in Chicago: one meeting to be held on April 14-18, the other on April 26-30. The Cooperative Study will pay a portion of the expenses.
- 20. Mileage on one car for three or four members of the Speech Department to attend the Central States Speech Association meeting in Des Moines, Iowa, on April 16-18.
- 21. First-class railway fare only for V. G. Grove to attend the meeting of the American Mathematical Society in Chicago on April 17 and 18.
- 22. First-class railway fare only for E. J. Miller to attend the annual meeting of the American Chemical Society in Memphis, Tennessee, on April 20-24.
- 23. Mileage on one car for members of the Chemistry Department to attend the annual meeting of the American Chemical Society in Memphis, Tennessee, on April 20-24.
- 24. Partial expenses for B. F. VanAlstyne to go to Newark, Ohio, on May 19 to participate in their all-sports banquet. The Newark people will pay \$25 toward the expenses.

On motion of Mr. Brody, seconded by Mr. McPherson, it was voted to approve the Travel.

#### MISCELLANEOUS

- 1. Approval of granting degrees to those students who will have completed the requirements for graduation according to the Registrar's records at the close of the winter term. See p. 1803.
- 2. Recommendation from Dean Giltner that consideration be given to the request of Miss Kimmy Au, a Chinese girl who is living in China, for the waiving of college fees so that she may enroll as a student in the Veterinary Division
- 3. Acceptance of \$75 and approval of the following rules and regulations covering a scholarship loan fund donated by the Grand Rapids PanHellenic Society:

1. It shall be loaned to a Grand Rapids Girl.

2. She shall be a junior or senior in an undergraduate college.

- 3. The fund shall go to four Michigan colleges represented in the Grand Rapids Panhellenic Societynamely, U. Of Mich., Michigan State College, Albion and Hillsdale.
- The amount sent to each college shall be determined by the scholarship committee of Grand Rapids Panhellenic with the approval of the board.
- 5. The scholarship committees of the above mentioned colleges shall administer the loan, preferably to a sorority member.
- The college scholarship committees shall be responsible for the loaning and collecting of these funds and make annual reports to the Grand Rapids Panhellenic Society.

Rules for Michigan State College Loan Fund:

- 1. It shall be used as a long term loan with the rate of interest 6%.
- 2. The loan should not run over a period of two years except in extreme cases.
- 3. At the time of the loan, a plan for monthly re-payment should be discussed. payments should begin at least four months following graduation with the monthly payments on a ten or fifteen dollar basis depending on employment secured.
- Acceptance of \$400 and continuation of a memorandum of understanding with the Midwest Soil Improvement Committee providing for a study of fertilizer practices which will improve the yield of corn and other crops grown in the rotation.

Fees to be waived for Kimmy Au.

Acceptance of \$75 for a scholarship loan fund donatedby the Grand Rapids PanHellenic Socity.

Accep. \$400 & approval memo of understandi ing Midwest Soil Imp. Com.

#### MISCELLANEOUS (continued)

Acceptance \$300 & appr. memo of under. Monsanto 750 Am. Coll.6.

of Dentists

- 5. Acceptance of \$300 and approval of a memorandum of understanding with the Monsanto Chemical Company providing for a study of the effectiveness of basic slag prepared by the Company as a source of phosphoric acid for various crops grown on Michigan soil types.
- Acceptance of \$750 and approval of an agreement with the American College of Dentists for the continuation of the research studies on inheritance factors in rat caries.
- Approval pur- 7. chase Red Cross Mobile Unit
- Consideration of the purchase of a Red Cross Mobile Unit in cooperation with the City of East Lansing, the College to pay one half of the total cost of \$300.
- \$33,390 accep. 8. from Bud.Dir. for 2 greenhouses.
- Notification from the Office of the Budget Director of the allotment of \$33,390 to Michigan State College for the purpose of erecting two greenhouses and installing equipment for use in the sugar beet breeding program.

On motion of Mr. McPherson, seconded by Mr. Jakway, it was voted to authorize the President, Secretary and Treasurer to proceed with plans for the construction of the greenhouses.

Statement Ann status of funds as of

Feb. 28.

- Arbor Trust re.9. Presentation of statement from the Ann Arbor Trust Company relative to the status of trust funds as of February 28, 1942.
  - 10. Recommendation from Mr. Cress to the Finance Committee for the disposition of the following 1 -- + 1 -- -- - - - -

	Issue	Amount	Ledger <u>Value</u>	Authorized Sales <u>Price</u>	Value
Board approxes sale of certain bonds as per recom. of Mr. Cress.	Gross Pointe Park, Park Site $4\frac{1}{2}$ ,196	1 \$20,000	\$21,200	125	\$25,000
	Oakland Co., Mich. Highway Imp. 3's 1954/57	50,000	50,000	101	50,500
	St. Clair Shores, Mich, Int. Ref. Ctf. due 10/1/47	1,485.70	1,485.70	70	1,039.99

On motion of Mr. Akers, seconded by Mr. McPherson, it was voted to approve the sale of 20 Gross Pointe Park, Park Site 42, 1961 bonds at \$25,000 and, 1 St. Clair Shores, Mich. Int. Ref. Ctf. due Oct. 1, 1947 at \$1,039.00 and to hold in abeyance the sale of the Oakland County Mich. Highway Imp. Bonds.

Payment of \$8.40 to Fr. Betrett for injury rec.

- 11. Report of the payment of \$8.40 to Frank Barrett as compensation for time lost because of an injury received while unloading coal.
- \$33.00 to Geo 12. Report of payment of \$33 to R. George Struble as compensation for time lost because of an in-Struble. jury received while working.
  - 13. Report of payment of following amounts to College employees for services rendered during the winter term athletic contests:

Approval	
labor payroll	Carl W. Car
several em-	Rex Davis
ployees who	G. E. Mitc
worked at	Dave B. Ba
athletic con-	Larry C. H
tests	E. C. Tabo
	Elmer C. W
	C. C. Lang
	O. L. Ever
	G. F. Knan

Carl W. Carlson	\$2.00	James Tyson	\$42.00
Rex Davis	31.50	R. L. Cook	48.00
G. E. Mitchener	36.50	K. C. Randall	26.00
Dave B. Baldwin	10.00	C. C. Hamilton	26.00
Larry C. Hutchinson	2:00	R. J. Davis	44.00
E. C. Tabor	14.00	Vern Severence	7.50
Elmer C. Wilcox	24.00	R. J. Corwin	32.00
C. C. Langham	12.00	J. M. Kutt	7.00
O. L. Everett	24.00	J. E. Jepson	39.50
G. F. Knapp	36.00	C. A. Rosenbrook	52.50
C. N. McCarty	32.00	R. C. Whiting	57.50
R. M. Warren	52.00		

\$16.10 compensation to Leland Van— Riper

- 14. Report of payment of \$16.10 to Leland VanRiper as compensation for time lost because of an injury received while working.
- \$1000 allowed 15. Request from Dean Huston for a special appropriation not to exceed \$1000 for the purchase of equipment to be used in the course in plastics in the Department of Chemistry. Chem. Dept.
  - \$2500 Direc- 16. Mr. Wilkins recommends an additional appropriation of \$2500 to the budget of the Director of the Experiment Station. tor Exp. Sta.

  - \$100 appro. Aud 17. Request for an appropriation of \$100 for the use of the Auditorium for the District Band Festival on Saturday, April 4.

Commun. Mr. Ballard re: Estate tax on Jenison Est.

18. Communication from Byron L. Ballard relative to the return for the federal estate tax for the Fred C. Jenison Estate.

On motion of Mr. Brody, seconded by Mr. McPherson, it was voted to approve Miscellaneous Items except items 8 and 10, on which action appears.

of Duane Tripp Crosthwaite.

Report of death19. Report that Duane Tripp Crosthwaite, class of 1942, was killed in a bomber crash near Boise, Idaho, on March 16, 1942. Mr. Crosthwaite was a student in the Engineering Division from 1938-1942. His home was in Pleasant Ridge, Michigan.

# MISCELLANEOUS (continued)

20. Consideration of proposed budget for 1942-43.

On motion of Mr. McPherson, seconded by Mr. Berkey, it was voted to authorize the President, Secretary and Treasurer to proceed with the building of the budget for 1942-43 to be presented in detail at the next meeting of the Board.

21. Approval of a change in the 1942 football schedule which was approved at the November 1941 meeting by substituting Oregon State College for Santa Clara, - Oregon to come here next fall and State to go to Corvallis the following fall. The guarantee is to be \$10,000 on a home and home basis. The game this fall is to be played November 28th instead of October 24th (the date scheduled for Santa Clara). A game with the Great Lakes Training School has been scheduled here for October 24th.

On motion of Mr. Akers, seconded by Mr. McPherson, it was voted to approve the above change in the 1942 football schedule.

22. Recommendation that the Board purchase two farms on which it holds purchase options,— the Patton farm of 30 acres for \$9,000.00 and the Aldrich farm of 40 acres for \$14,000, from funds provided by special legislative appropriation.

On motion of Mr. Brody, seconded by Mr. Berkey, it was voted to approve the purchase of the above-mentioned farms.

23. Communication from Mr. Earle Smith whose resignation as Instructor in Chemistry was accepted at the last meeting of the Board, indicating that through some agreement made with him when he was originally employed, there is still due him one month's salary. (Mr. Wilkins has investively Smith, Chemistry was accepted \$141.66 do was originally employed, there is still due him one month's salary. (Mr. Wilkins has investively Smith, Chemistry was accepted \$141.66 do was originally employed, there is still due him one month's salary. (Mr. Wilkins has investively Smith, Chemistry was accepted \$141.66 do was originally employed, there is still due him one month's salary. (Mr. Wilkins has investively Smith, Chemistry was accepted \$141.66 do was originally employed, there is still due him one month's salary. (Mr. Wilkins has investively Smith, Chemistry was accepted \$141.66 do was originally employed, there is still due him one month's salary. (Mr. Wilkins has investively Smith, Chemistry was accepted \$141.66 do was originally employed, there is still due him one month's salary. (Mr. Wilkins has investively Smith, Chemistry was accepted \$141.66 do was originally employed, there is still due him one month's salary. (Mr. Wilkins has investively Smith, Chemistry was accepted \$141.66 do was originally employed, there is still due him one month's salary.

On motion of Mrs. Masselink, seconded by Mr. Berkey, it was voted to approve the payment of \$141.66 which is the amount due Mr. Smith.

24. The President reported that the Chemical Warfare Department had indicated their interest in the establishment of a center for teaching civilians the essentials of defense against chemical warfare on the campus, as one of four or five schools in the nation.

On motion of Mr. Berkey, seconded by Mr. Akers, it was voted to approve the establishment of the above-mentioned center.

25. Mr. Brody, requested suggestions from the Board regarding the educational institutions in relation to the Constitutional Revision Study Commission.

<del>\*</del>

# GRADUATES OF WINTER 1942

#### DIVISION OF AGRICULTURE

Degree
Bachelor of Science
in
Agriculture

George Makel

\*William Westrate

\*Howard Marion Stiver

Edwin Lavern Sootsman

George B. Wiersma

William Albert Aho James Jakway Culby Kenneth Marvin Dunn John Wood Foster \*Albert Truman Hall (Mar. 1, 1942) Frank Holtz Earl Albert Huston, Jr.

Degree
Bachelor of Science
in
Forestry

Gordon Louis Albrecht Robert Henry Bartlett \*Louis John Metz Edward Joseph Rothwell Wendell A. Smith

Degree
Bachelor of Science

Bachelor of Science in Landscape Architecture

Joseph Alexander Hutchinson

#### DIVISION OF ENGINEERING

Degree
Bachelor of Science
in
Chemical Engineering

John C. Clapper

Pres. Sec. & Treas. to build budget for 1942-43.

Approval of change in 1942 football schedule.

Board to purchase the 2 farms - Patton and Aldrick on which options are held.

Amount of \$141.66 due Mr. Earle Smith, Chem. Inst. who resigned.

Chem. Warfare wish to establish center for teaching essentials of defense against chem. warfare on campus.

Mr. Brody requested suggestions re: educational institutions in re: to Constitution Revision Study Commission.

Degrees granted winter 1942

R Degrees

granted win-

ter 1942

#### Degrees, continued

Degree
Bachelor of Science
in
Civil Engineering

Donald E. Fugere

Degree
Bachelor of Science
in
Electrical Engineering

lectrical Engineering Elton Allen Lindsay Degree
Bachelor of Science
in
Mechanical Engineering

Richard LeMoine Berlin Edward M. Fouch
William Elmo Rasmusson

#### DIVISION OF HOME ECONOMICS

Degree
Bachelor of Science
in
Home Economics

Madlyn Elizabeth Akscin Loretto Antoinette Devitt Marquita LaDore Irland \*Virginia Lois Shannon Florence Reid Stienecker \*\*Clara Emily Tompsett Harriette Alice Wiggins

Betty Jean Wolf Beatrice Lorna Young Mary Julia Zak

## DIVISION OF VETERINARY SCIENCE

Degree
Doctor of Veterinary Medicine

Charles Gervase Collins

Henry Palmer Eames, Jr.

David Forrest Stevens

#### DIVISION OF APPLIED SCIENCE

Degree
Bachelor of Science
in
Applied Science

Janice Margaret Bagley Joseph Arthur Foster Jay C. Jennings \*\*Marjorie Jean Lesher Frank Robert Peabody Philip Douglas Reister

Joseph Simek, Jr.
John Richard Sinclair
\*\*Marrine Adrian Terpstra

Degree
Bachelor of Science
in
Physical Education

Charles Maynard Butler

Clyde Frederick Marshall Robert Milton Morris

Lauerne Jean Wilson

#### DIVISION OF LIBERAL ARTS

Degree Bachel**or** of Arts

\*\*Betty Margaret Crum
Dorothy Mary Cummins
Marshall Dann
Elizabeth Jean Fairbank
Hazel Marjorie Findlay
Harold Nelson Hard

Elmer William Leyrer Doyle William Lott \*Margie Joyce Mallmann Erma Celestine Parker Janet Georgia Rypstra

Bert Sangster, Jr.
June McMahon Stephenson
Ruth Stow
\*\*Albert John Thorburn
\*Rosemary Walker
Betty Yobst

Degree
Bachelor of Arts
in
Business Administration

Robert Burnell Carlson

Paul Frederick Nelson

Melvin Edward Peterson

Degree Bachelor of Music

Richard Waldron Williams

Degrees granted winter 1942

Degree
Bachelor of Arts
in
Hotel Administration

Kenneth William Greene

Ruth Jane Hoogesteger

Robert Frederick Kershaw

MASTER OF ARTS

Manz, Frederick Donald
Major - Education
Minor - Economics

Strait, Mrs. Helen Otto Major - English Minor - French

MASTER OF SCIENCE

Bernstein, Paul

Major - Horticulture Winor - Botany and Soils Dill, John J.

Major - Biochemistry

Minor - Physiology

Henry, Grafton F.

Major - Farm Crops
Minor - Soils

Vander Meulen, Evart
Major - Farm Crops
Minor - Chem. & Botany

DOCTOR OF PHILOSOPHY

Hodgson, Charles W. Major - Farm Crops

The meeting adjourned at 2:45 P.M.

President

Secretary